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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Chair’s report

Leisure & Culture Dundee has had a year of transformation, renewed purpose, and increased
community connection. Across all areas of our work, from the reimagining of Active Dundee to the
integration of Libraries with Cultural Services, we have embraced innovation, inclusivity and resilience.

This year, we saw record-breaking participation with 2.9 million visits across our services, the successful
launch of new programmes, and the strengthening of partnerships that place wellbeing, creativity, and
learning at the heart of our city. The rebranding to Active Dundee was a landmark moment, signalling a
refreshed commitment to accessible, high-quality services that meet the evolving needs of our
communities. Meanwhile, the unification of Library and Cultural Services has created new opportunities
for collaboration and impact, with initiatives that support digital inciusion, cultural enrichment, and
lifelong learning.

We know that these are challenging times for many of our service users and we have sought to
acknowledge this in our offers and pricing structures. We value the role we play in improving the health,
wellbeing and quality of life for Dundee citizens and for those who access our services from out with the
city.

None of this would have been possible without the dedication of our staff, volunteers, and partners
alongside the support of our customers. Their passion and professionalism continue to drive our mission
forward. As we reflect on the achievements of the past year, we also look ahead with confidence;
committed to delivering services that are sustainable, inclusive, and rooted in the communities we serve.

Sue M

Sue Mondy - 2025-11-20,11:00:21UTC .
Sue Moody

Chair, Leisure & Culture Dundee
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24

Context
Throughout the year Leisure & Culture Dundee (LACD) has focused on actions which meet our vision:
» Everyone in Dundee and visitors to the city will have access to excellent sports and cultural
experiences and our mission:
e We will work towards a sustainable future for LACD.

In addition, our actions reflect the vision of the Dundee Partnership City Plan for Dundee 2022-2032:
* Dundee will be a caring city which has tackled the root causes of poverty and delivered fairmess
in incomes, education and health.
* Dundee will have a strong, creative, smart and suslainable city economy with jobs and
opportunities for all.
* Dundee will be a greener city, made up of strong communities where people feel empowered,
safe and proud to live.

Active Dundee

Introduction

The 2024-2025 year marked a pivotal chapter in Active Dundee’s evolution, defined by bold
transformation, inclusive growth, and deepened community impact. The successful rebranding from
Leisure & Sport Dundee to Active Dundee was more than a name change; it signified a renewed
commitment to accessibility, innovation, and wellbeing for all.

1,945,067 visits recorded across all facilities—an increase of over 318,000 from the previous year. With
this record-breaking participation across facilities, the launch of pioneering programmes like Al-assisted
rehabilitation and youth leadership initiatives, and the expansion of inclusive community hubs all
underscore the organisation’s growing relevance and reach. Financially, introducing a new membership
model delivered unprecedented resuits, proving that strategic investment in value and inclusivity can
drive engagement and sustainability.

While the closure of Caird Park Golf Course was a difficult but necessary decision, the organisation
remains focused on optimising resources and enhancing the quality of its remaining services. The
dedication of staff across all venues and programmes has been instrumental in achieving this year's
successes.

Strategic Transformation: Rebranding to Active Dundee

In December 2024, the organisation underwent a comprehensive rebranding initiative of our leisure and
sports services, emerging as Active Dundee. This transformation was more than cosmetic; it
represented a renewed commitment to inclusivity, accessibility, and community engagement.

The rebranding included a redesigned website and mobile app, new brand guidelines, and a fresh visual
identity supported by photography, video, and storytelling campaigns such as ‘Your Place.’ These efforts
have been met with overwhelmingly positive feedback, enhancing user experience and strengthening
the organisation’s connection with the community.

A Year in Numbers: April 2024 - March 2025

Between April 2024 and March 2025, the overall performance across various facilities significantly
increased compared to the same period from April 2023 to March 2024. The total for 2024-25 was
1,945,067, whereas for 2023-24, it was 1,626,906, representing an overall growth of 19.5%.

For pools only, Olympia saw a dramatic rise from 55,000 to 313,518, indicating a substantial increase
in usage and engagement which was as a result of its full reopening from May 2024. Other pools like
Lochee and St. Paul's experienced slight declines, but the total for pools showed a 97% increase from
234,396 to 460,853. This growth highlights pool facilities' increased popularity and utilisation over the
year.

Regarding indoor sport and leisure facilities (excluding pools), Olympia's indoor facilities increased from

17,232 to 81,702. Other facilities like Lochee and St. Paul's also saw growth, contributing to the total
increase from 141,833 to 216,320.

putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 3

LACD 2025 Final Accounts.pdf [d6436641-1d74-48c4-a562-c67d0613deed) Page: 5 / 53



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

A Year in Numbers: April 2024 - March 2025 (continued)

Other indoor sport and leisure facilities and services also saw notable increases. DISC and the Ice Arena
significantly rose, increasing by 52.5% from 945,852 to 991,207. This indicates a broader engagement
with a variety of indoor activities and services.

Outdoor facilities and services experienced a slight decrease overall, from 304,825 to 276,687. Despite
some fluctuations, the overall performance of outdoor facilities showed a minor decline, which could be
attributed to several factors including weather conditions.

Overall, the period from April 2024 to March 2025 demonstrated significant growth in most areas
compared to the previous year, reflecting a positive trend in utilising facilities and services.

Programme Innovation and Community Impact

The Physical Activity Team was central in expanding the organisation’s reach through innovative and
inclusive programming. Highlights include expanding the Learn to Swim initiative, launching the Youth
Ambassador Programme which brings together young people aged 14-17 to work with Active Dundee,
promote physical wellbeing increase awareness of activities and prepare themselves and peers to make
a difference in their communities, and introducing Al-assisted rehabilitation classes like Good Boost,
which is a low impact water based programme aimed at those living with a musculoskeletal condition.

The team also delivered over 3,200 junior holiday programme attendances, generated more than
£54,000 in income, and received glowing feedback from parents and participants.

The Physical Activity Team also introduced racquet sports for early years, futsal sessions, and themed
holiday events such as Active Tots Easter and Halloween parties. The Learn to Swim programme
expanded with a 95% increase in swim teacher recruitment, and the Disability Sport Swim Gala returned
to Olympia, reinforcing the team’'s commitment to inclusive sport.

The Ancrum Outdoor Centre reported an 11% increase in participation, welcoming over 40,000
individuals. This growth was driven by the success of the active travel project, which delivered cycling
and walking initiatives across all 33 primary schools in Dundee. The centre also expanded its outdoor
education offerings and maintained a zero-incident safety record during peak season, underscoring its
commitment to excellence in risk management.

Inclusive Engagement Through Active Schools and Community Hubs

Active Schools and Community Sports Hubs delivered various inclusive programmes to engage
underrepresented and disadvantaged groups. Key initiatives included the Dundee International Sports
Centre (DISC) Family Project, which supported 47 families with weekly physical activity sessions and
healthy food provision, and the Watersports Inclusion Programme, which introduced pupils from Craigie
High School to rowing, sailing, and open water swimming.

A new Community Sport Hub was launched in Lochee, addressing local deprivation through free camps
and youth programmes. Partnerships with organisations like Amina - The Muslim Women's Resource
Centre, enabled a 12-week basketball programme for BME girls, fostering confidence and participation
in a safe environment.

The Learn to Ride Cycling Project reached 430 pupils, while tailored holiday programmes supported
care-experienced young people. The Path to Paris Summer Holiday Project established a referral
process with DCC's Children’s Services to provide targeted access to LACD summer provision and the
LEAD 2025 leadership programme, an intensive sports leadership, coaching and officiating course open
to pupils S4-S6 attending a Dundee school, further exemplified the team’s dedication to youth
development and community empowerment.

These efforts significantly enhanced community inclusion, physical activity, and youth development
across Dundee.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

Venue Highlights and Milestones

Olympia hosted 48 programmed aquatic events in 2024, including the return of artistic swimming and
diving. The centre also partnered with NHS Tayside and Chest, Heart & Stroke Scotland to deliver health
programmes targeting weight management and neurological conditions. Lochee Leisure Centre
exceeded its attendance target by 104%, and both centres accounted for over 53% of total membership
visits.

Dundee Ice Arena attendance rose to 200,776. Installing a new, energy-efficient refrigeration plant
improved ice quality and sustainability. The arena hosted national competitions and celebrated the
success of local teams like the Dundee Rockets, who won the Scottish National League (SNL) ice
hockey league title and the Scottish Cup.

Camperdown Wildlife Centre demonstrated resilience and dedication by addressing the conditions of a
critical Zoo Inspection within three months. Despite a slight dip in visitor numbers, the centre maintained
strong community support and is now focused on enhancing its facilities and visitor experience.

The City Sports Team reported a 7.4% increase in attendance, with an additional 26,289 visits. The
team hosted 126 events across various sports and partnered with organisations such as Chest, Heart
& Stroke Scotland and Yusuf Youth Initiative, a community based organisation which creates and
supports projects . Douglas Sports Centre was a finalist for the UK Active Award 2024, and DISC
generated £500,000 in income for the first time. These achievements reflect the team’s commitment to
excellence and community health.

The Regional Performance Centre (RPC) Dundee recorded its busiest year with 443,372 attendances.
The centre supported elite athletes like Laura Muir and Eilish McColgan, hosted international events,
and became the national base for rhythmic gymnastics. It also served as a venue for community and
corporate events, reinforcing its role as a premier destination for sport and engagement.

McTaggart Gymnastics Centre also had a record year, with 75,096 attendances—the highest since the
pandemic. All birthday party slots were fully booked, and the centre hosted national training sessions,
supporting both grassroots and elite gymnastics development.

Caird Park Golf Course

The decision to close Caird Park Golf Course was made by Dundee City Council in 2024 as part of cost-
saving measures to reduce the financial pressures on Leisure and Culture Dundee. The course closed
on 30" April 2025.

We formally acknowledge and sincerely thank the Caird Park Golf Course staff. Over the years, their
hard work, commitment, and passion have been instrumental in maintaining the facility's high standards
and fostering a welcoming environment for all users. Their efforts have supported the day-to-day
operations and contributed significantly to the sense of community that defined Caird Park.

Training and Workforce Development

The Training Team achieved a major milestone by delivering its 1,000th First Aid course in partnership
with Qualsafe Awards. Training income rose by over £20,000 year-on-year, and participation in First Aid
courses increased significantly.

Beyond First Aid, the Training Team supported the delivery of National Pool Lifeguard Qualifications
and collaborated with Active Dundee instructors to maintain high safety standards. The team’s
involvement in the Circuit defibrillator network further underscores its role in community health resilience.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

Membership Growth and Financial Performance

Implementing a new membership scheme in January 2025 marked a pivotal moment for Active Dundee,
delivering record-breaking participation and financial performance results. This strategic overhaul
followed extensive research, development, and mobilisation, aligning with the broader rebranding
initiative to modernise and enhance service delivery.

Membership yield increased by an impressive 12%, culminating in the highest net membership figures.
By March 2025, total membership reached 7,154, while direct debit income soared to a record £1 57,205,
reflecting growing member confidence and sustained engagement. Notably, the number of new joiners
in Q4 was the highest ever recorded, indicating strong momentum following the scheme's launch.

Despite a price increase, Unlimited Adult membership remained the most popular category, accounting
for 30% of all new joiners. This high-yielding category's continued success demonstrates the perceived
value and appeal of the services offered. Meanwhile, the Young Persons category achieved the second-
highest join rate post-restructure, driven by competitive pricing and enhanced access to gym facilities,
key factors for this demographic.

The Junior membership category also saw significant expansion, particularly due to enhancements to
the Junior Unlimited membership. These changes broadened access to a broader range of activities,
including gymnastics and athletics, and were complemented by introducing lower-cost Junior and Tot
(free) Bolt-On options. Families received these offerings well, contributing to increased accessibility and
sustained growth.

Overall, the success of the new membership model reflects a well-executed strategy that balanced
financial sustainability with inclusivity and value—the results position Active Dundee for continued
growth and deeper community engagement in the year ahead.

Library and Cultural Services

Introduction

April 2024— March 2025 marked a period of transformation for Library and Cultural Services, with the
bringing together of the two services. With a focus on community engagement, digital inclusion, cultural
enrichment and health and wellbeing, the service delivered a wide range of programmes across libraries,
museums, and cultural venues. Key highlights include record-breaking visitor numbers at Mills
Observatory, expanded outreach and volunteering, and innovative partnerships that brought learning,
creativity, and wellbeing to the forefront of our service delivery.

This report reflects the extraordinary work carried out across our services and highlights the vital role
played in supporting communities, helping to address inequalities, and enriching lives.

Our venues continue to be welcoming, inclusive spaces where people of all ages can learn, connect,
and thrive. From early years literacy and digital inclusion to health and wellbeing initiatives, our services
have adapted to meet the evolving needs of our city. The dedication of our staff and volunteers, the
creativity of our programming, and the strength of our partnerships have all contributed to a vibrant and
resilient service.

This report not only celebrates our achievements but also reaffirms our commitment to innovation,
sustainability, and community engagement. As we look ahead, we remain focused on ensuring that our
libraries continue to be at the heart of Dundee’s cultural offer.

A Year in Numbers

The total number of visitors to libraries across the city for this period was 781,147, representing a 13%
increase on the previous year. This increase was represented across twelve of the fourteen locations,
with Central Library’s figures up by 54,580 to 446,215 (April 2024 — March 2025). An impressive total of
11,211 events and activities were held in libraries across the city with 72,373 participants,

Across all cultural service venues, the total number of visitors was 170,869, representing a 1.8%
increase on the previous year. This included a remarkable 121% increase at the Mills Observatory
from 9892 visits in 2023/2024 to 14,703 in 2024/2025, following a targeted marketing campaign and
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

A Year in Numbers (continued)

associated activities. Broughty Castle Museum also showed an increase from 39,132 to 40,850,
representing 4.4%. The McManus Art Gallery and Museum had 115,314 visitors, representing a slight
decrease of 6% on the previous year. The Caird Hall had 99,986 visitors, a fall on the previous year of
12%.

Volunteer numbers showed an impressive 57% increase on the previous year, with 5163 volunteer hours
worked across all service areas with 1269 in Cultural Services and 3894 in Library Services.

Libraries

A new Creative Central space in Central Library was launched in January 2025. The space delivers a
calendar of creative activities, alongside provision of associated books and resources. Workshops and
activities are delivered to enable participants to both develop creativity and support wellbeing. Classes
and craft sessions are delivered by staff members as well as partners and include sewing, crochet,
drawing, 3D printing and creative writing.

As part of Book Week Scotland in November 2024 the Library Service hosted a range of events with
support from the Scottish Book Trust. ‘Souper Stories’ involved Leisure Reading staff reading extracts
from their favourite books on the theme of ‘Hope.’ Attendees received soup and refreshments during the
listen-along session.

A Transatlantic Zoom Book Club took place in Central Library with our sister library in Alexandria,
Virginia. The session was a lively and interesting discussion around the Dorothy K Haynes, ‘Thou Shait
Not Suffer a Witch' short story.

Local History hosted a manuscript illustration workshop with an exhibition and discussion on the
manuscript works of William Gardiner, Dundonian botanist, poet and artist, 1809-1952. Participants
were encouraged to take inspiration from the works to create their own pages illuminated with colourful
llustration, akin to 'The Botanical Repository,’ a series of manuscript magazines which included
contributions from Gardiner.

Supported by the Scottish Government Public Library Improvement Fund, Dundee Local History Library
launched the Dundee Maritime Past and Futures web resource in July. This explores the city's
relationship with the River Tay through events looking at the history of whaling and how the whaling
industry of the past can inform our current discussions around sustainability and climate change. The
project includes a digitised copy of Alexander Smith's account of two 1861 voyages on S.S,
Camperdown alongside other contextual information.

Central Library hosted the exhibition Remembering Dundee’s Music Halls between 25 April and 31 May.
The exhibition was curated from the Local History Centre’'s unique poster collections as part of a
collaboration between Local History, the McManus and the School of Art History at the University of St
Andrews. Creative Services produced panels and an exhibition poster. Alongside the exhibition, the
library hosted events including a talk from Alison Young of the British Music Hall Society, a printing press
workshop with Pathfoot Press, a walking tour of music hall sites and a performance of music hall songs
by Michael Warne and Lynne Campbell. The performance event included a group from the charity
Positive Steps. The project is ongoing with plans to digitise posters in the collection, seek funding to
create a digital map of Dundee music halls and to host another exhibition at the McManus next year.

In October 2022, the At Home Service began providing a regular library service to residents within the
Bella Centre, a Community Custody Unit for women and young people. As part of the latest review, the
Centre agreed to host a library coffee morning on World Book Night for the library to gift the residents
with a quick read book, sachet of hot chocolate and a biscuit and encourage them to get comfortable
and read a book that evening. The event was well received with residents and available custody staff
joining in with a chat about the wider services available through the library.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

Children and Family Support

Libraries across the city have supported a wide range of activities and events which have positively
contributed to supporting children and young people. These covered arts and crafts, books and reading,
digital, environmental, health and wellbeing, and educational topics.

Code Clubs are running weekly in several libraries across the city, with new volunteers being recruited
with help from St. Andrews Voluntary Service — a subcommittee of the Students Association. Through
the clubs, a Library Lego League team in association with Morgan Academy were runners up in the
regional finals in Spring 2025. The team had to find innovative solutions using robotics, coding, 3D
printing and Lego.

In partnership with Dundee's Accessibility and Inclusion Service and an additional £1000 funding from
Help for Kids, the School Library Service has created Attention Autism Boxes for schools in Dundee to
borrow to support the Attention Autism programme. An additional £1000 was secured from Help for Kids
to enhance the resources.

During the summer, the Library Service, in partnership with Macmillan Cancer Information and Support
Service, provided information on sun safety at family events across the city and distributed just under
500 bottles of sunblock to families experiencing the impact of the cost-of-living crisis.

Volunteering

The yearly evaluation of volunteering and the volunteers’ experience has recently taken place, with
100% of the volunteers who took part agreeing they would recommend volunteering in our libraries to
others. They also provided feedback which demonstrated that volunteering has added to their sense of
the community and belonging, along with gaining new skills and experience which will support them in
other areas of their lives.

Databanks have been established in ten libraries across the City. Libraries have provided devices and
data and one-to-one digital support to individuals on low income, in partnership with Project Scotland,
Positive Steps, Dundee Survival Group and the Women’s Hub, as well as our volunteers. Targeted
promotion of this service has been conducted with organisations that support individuals who are
currently not working or under employed. This service supports individuals in job seeking and online
benefit claims.

In partnership with Project Scotland Inspire (Volunteering Matters) library volunteers facilitated eight
weekly sessions with a focus to develop digital skills for 20 young people aged 18-25 at Arthurstone
Library. The focus was to support them to develop digital skills to access essential services, support and
opportunities for learning and employment. These sessions were developed in response to an identified
need through discussion with ESOL and DCC Community Regeneration Team. Digital equipment and
resources were sourced through the Covid Relief Fund to address digital exclusion and support young
adult attainment, and Arabic speaking Library Volunteers (Digital Champions) supported the group. The
group were also given devices and sim cards on completion of the course, to continue their studies.

The Friends of Broughty Ferry Library group has continued their programme of evening talks in the
library to help raise funds, tackle isolation and raise awareness of the library within the local community.
All the speakers are sourced through the Friends committee, or from members of the public who have
heard them talk at other events. The annual Family Fun Day in the Library in August had 700 people in
attendance, with funds raised put towards new furniture for the children’s area. The Fun Day led into the
launch of talks on the mansion houses of Broughty Ferry, which raised £300 to be invested back into
the library and helped promote the autumn programme of events.

putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 8
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

Health and Wellbeing

The Library Service has built on its core services which promote reuse through the lending of books and
resources, extending to include musical instruments and seeds. Riding the wave of Make Music
Tayside's workshops for children earlier in the year, instrument loans are now available to all Dundee
Libraries members. Uptake has been high with positive feedback from customers, praising the initiative
as a great way to try out a variety of instruments without cost. In conjunction with Maxwell Community
Centre, Central Library now offers a seed library with a wide selection of seeds available for anyone to
take home and grow flowers, food and herbs for free.

Volunteers and staff visited Bridge FM to record promotional content to be broadcast throughout the
hospital and NHS Tayside premises. The recordings made included case studies highlighting the
support already received by those accessing information and support at Macmillan Hubs within libraries.
The broadcast has generated interest from NHS Tayside staff who have contacted the volunteer
coordinator to enquire about information provision for patients. Bridge FM are also happy to provide
further opportunities for promotion of library services through their radio station.

Cultural Services
Children and Family Support

The Learning and Engagement Team based at the McManus received funding of £75,000 over the next
three years from the Northwood Charitable Trust. This backing will allow the team to develop a new
learning & engagement project called McManus Connections which will focus on helping local children,
families and young people. This project will deliver creative opportunities including outreach sessions,
museum- based gallery tours, holiday programmes, large-scale co-delivered events and co-creation
with groups of new learning resources and activities.

The funding will also allow the team to expand on support for positive mental health within educational
settings, families, non-traditional family groups and welcome the many New Scots and Ukrainian families
to the museum.

The fourth and final round of the Dundee Women's Trail Small Steps project has now been completed,
with the Central Library and the McManus Creative Learning Team working in partnership with the
Dundee Women's Trail. The 92 pupils involved were given the opportunity to explore the lives of women
from the Dundee Women'’s Trail who have made significant contributions to society in Dundee and
beyond. The work created through this project was displayed in the McManus, with the resulting ‘Small
Steps’ leaflet distributed in schools across Dundee, local libraries and the McManus.

The new Culture Strategy for Dundee, which sets out the priorities for the culture sector in the city over
the next ten years, has been finalised. Our Culture Strategy Officer has worked closely with the Dundee
Partnership Cultural Development Group and associated stakeholders to develop the Strategy.

Health and Wellbeing

In partnership with Tayside Healthcare Arts Trust ST/ART Programme, the Learning and Engagement
Team delivered an 8-week block of sessions for individuals living with a long-term health condition to
use creative practice as a support mechanism. The sessions used the museum’s temporary exhibition
‘A Weather Eye’ as inspiration. The sessions ended with a special sharing and celebration event in the
studio with the work on display. Participant feedback was positive: ‘I didn't know the power of drawing’;
‘Being creative has calmed my mind and has helped me with my college studies’.

Across 2024, The McManus Learning and Engagement Team delivered an ambitious eight-week
engagement project called ‘McMarra's Dnudee’ alongside THAT (Tayside Healthcare Arts Trust) and
their participant groups within The McManus. The project was co-designed to provide person-centred
learning experiences and creative participation for people marginalized by their long-term health
conditions. The developing archive of Dundee singer-song writer Michael Marra was used to inspire
participants to create artwork narrating their own stories. Artwork from each participant was used to
create limited edition concertina books which then went on public display.

putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 9
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

Health and Wellbeing (continued)

In partnership with Scrap Antics, the McManus has worked with groups involving the young asylum
seekers who have arrived in the city. These men are from different countries and have experienced
significant trauma when leaving home, on their journeys and on arrival. The McManus delivered three
tours of museum and creative sessions for a total of thirty-five participants with many benefits including
improved mental health and wellbeing, increased access to and understanding of cultural organisations
in the city, longer term connections to the museum and an opportunity to express themselves and their
identity.

The McManus: Art Gallery and Museum

The McManus was asked to loan significant items from the collection to major national exhibitions. An
Irish Impressionist: Lavery on Location was held at the National Galleries of Scotland from July -October.
We were specifically targeted by NGS as a lender to this exhibition, lending ‘First Wounded London
Hospital’ to the show. It was visited by 33,346 individuals with 79,000 online digital views and supported
by a wider engagement programme of talks and tours.

The Tate Britain, London, exhibition ‘Now You See Us: Women Artists in Britain 1520-1920’ ran from 16
May - 13 October 2024 and featured Katherine Read’s Portrait of Willielma Campbell, Lady Glenorchy,
loaned by the McManus. The Tate have thanked us for our support in helping them ‘achieve our goal of
putting women artists on the map and restoring them to their rightful place in history'.

Our own exhibition A Weather Eye: Art inspired by the weather from Dundee's fine art collection gained
very positive press and a feature on Radio Scotland's Out of Doors. In addition to the engaging selection
of artworks, many have been drawn in by the exhibition’s use of Scots language as a way of engaging
those not normally interested in visual art exhibitions. Work by more than thirty artists captured the ever-
changing Scottish weather.

An early Bronze Age necklace and bracelet, painstakingly restored by experts at National Museums
Scotland, went on display in the McManus in August. Pieces of the jewellery were found in 1870 in a
burial suite at the former Balgay Estate, near Dundee.

The McManus Christmas Makers Market consisted of 15 stalls with local makers and had a programme
of festive activities for families including storytelling and hands-on crafts. This event was very well
attended by 900 visitors.

Museum Transformers anti-oppression training programme began in 2024, with 19 members of staff on
a national training programme. Delivering Change: Museum Transformers is an anti-oppression
programme that aims to empower the museum workforce to improve access to culture. The programme
was developed by Museums Galleries Scotland and an Expert Advisory Group, supported by the
National Lottery Heritage Fund and the Scottish Government. It will give the organisation the capacity,
training, and support to sustainably action and embed these ideas into the museum.

Broughty Castle Museum

Following the decision by Dundee City Council for the Broughty Castle Museum to remain open for a
further year, several plans have been put in place for the summer including music, markets and saunas.
New signage is waiting for approval from HES which will signify that the museum is free to visit.

An audit of all museum collections displayed at the Castle has been undertaken by curatorial and
technical staff and the Natural History Gallery has had new furniture installed to support self-directed
child-friendly activities.

An endearing look at 1950s life was on show at the Castle Museum, presenting a nostalgic snapshot of
life in Broughty Ferry during the late 1950s. 'Robin's Saturday' is on display courtesy of the National

Library of Scotland and follows Robin, a young boy, as he explores Broughty Ferry's familiar streets and
iconic landmarks by trike.

putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 10
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

UNESCO City of Design

In October 2024, the UNESCO City of Design team delivered a hugely successful Dundee Design
Festival with 10,702 attendances. 59% of visitors came from out with Dundee. The festival generated
£521,000 of Economic Impact to Dundee. We partner on the UNESCO Designation with several city
institutions including V&A Dundee, University of Dundee, and Abertay University.

The UNESCO Team has moved into Central Library, and the new space highlights design objects from
Dundee or across the global UNESCO design network. It provides a visible, public facing presence for
the team where designers and the public can access the team, raising awareness of the UNESCO
designation.

Caird Hall

The Caird Hall hosted an eclectic mix of events including the STUC Congress. a Cat Show, the Lydian
Singers Summer Concert and the Friends of the Caird Hall AGM. Hillcrest Housing staged their first staff
conference at the Hall, which was a very successful event for all. The EIS AGM returned to the venue
at the beginning of June and was again enjoyed by all attending. Dundee University Graduations and
the High School presentation also took place.

Support of £10,000 was secured from UKSPF funds to engage a consultant to develop a business plan
for the Caird Hall, which was completed in March 2025. We are working with a local designer to create
a better café experience for the Marryat Hall. This will increase customer enjoyment of the venue and is
being funded by UKSPF.

The partnership with Tayside Health Arts Trust and RSNO has continued, delivering workshops to
promote health and wellbeing through the arts for peopie living with long-term conditions.

The Hall hosted the Scottish Youth Music Exchange, bringing together a mix of young bands and
ensembles, youth music groups, teachers and musicians from around Scotland. Approximately 200
delegates and performers attended.

Numerous schools and young people’s groups including Big Noise, Dundee Dance Fest, Schools Music
Concerts, cheerleading and primary school Glee events, took place. Each of these give young people
access to the Caird Hall to demonstrate their talents and have a moment of celebration with their friends
and family, boosting confidence and positive life experiences.

Soundbase Spring Sessions in April 2024 saw 26 young people attend 3 days of music workshops at
the Caird Hall. The workshops are open to young people aged 12-18 and Soundbase offers participants
the opportunity to work with a team of professional musicians to learn new skills to improve songwriting,
guitar playing, drumming, keyboard, band skills and performance.

As part of Music Development’s World music programme Louise Dodds & Elchin Shirinov — vocal and
piano duo performed at the Marryat Hall, Thursday 27th June 2024. Louise Dodds is a Scottish jazz
vocalist and songwriter (Scottish Jazz Awards nominee 2022 and 2023) and Azerbaijani pianist,
composer and arranger Elchin Shirinov (All About Jazz Top 200 living pianists/Avishai Cohen Trio). In
2023 the duo released the critically acclaimed album Two Hours After Midnight, a collection of traditional
Scottish songs rearranged by Elchin with influences of jazz, classical and Azerbaijani folk.

The Friends of Caird Hall Organ have fundraised enough support to repair and restore the organ with
work due to start in the summer this year. FOCHO donating £43,945.46 to LACD to cover costs of repair
and restoration of the Organ in Caird Hall.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Managing director’s report 2024/24 (continued)

The Mills Observatory

Following the decision by Dundee City Council for the Mills to remain open, with external funding
secured for a three-year period, there has been a focus on activities to raise the profile of the building
through positive marketing and dynamic events, which has resulted in a significant increase in visitor
numbers.

A manuscript donated by astronomer and TV presenter Sir Patrick Moore, who died in 2012, went on
display at Mills Observatory. The manuscript for ‘The Moon — With a Description of its Surface
Formations’ was donated in 1972 and written by Walter Goodacre. Goodacre's lunar observations were
made using a 10-inch Cooke refracting telescope, operated from his own observatory In North Finchley.
Funding has been secured from a number of sources to refresh the interior of Mills and new visuals are
being created for the building.

The Year Ahead

Leisure & Culture Dundee is looking forward to the opportunities of 2025, identifying innovative ways to
move ahead and support the challenges faced by the city. The successes of last year, marked by
significant participation, pioneering programmes, and strengthened partnerships, have laid a strong
foundation for the future.

In 2025-2026, we will continue to respond to financial pressures with a strategic focus on sustainability,
inclusivity, and value. We will explore new income-generating initiatives whilst maintaining our
commitment to affordability and access. Improving access to our services by specific groups will remain
a priority, supported through external funding and partnership working.

Across all areas, our focus will be on transformational action—reimagining services, strengthening
community connections, and ensuring that Leisure & Culture Dundee remains a vital, resilient, and

forward-looking organisation. We are committed to delivering experiences that inspire, empower, and
enrich the lives of everyone in Dundee and beyond.

Judy Dobbie
Managing Director, Leisure and Culture Dundee
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2025. The charity information set out on page 1 and the Managing Director’s report
on pages 3 to 12 respectively, form part of this report. The financial statements comply with the
recommendations of the Statement of Recommended Practice and Accounting and Reporting by
Charities and current statutory requirements.

Structure, Governance and Management
Charitable status

Leisure & Culture Dundee is a Scottish Charitable Incorporated Organisation (SCIO), governed by its
constitution, and has charitable status under the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005
and the Scottish Charity Number is SC042421. The SCIO was recognised by the Office of the Scottish
Charity Regulator (OSCR) on 29 June 2011.

Trustees

There are thirteen trustees of which five are appointed by Dundee City Council, three elected
members and two officers, specifically the Executive Director of Corporate Services, Dundee City
Council and Managing Director (LACD). There are eight independent trustees in accordance with the
SCIO’s constitution. There are currently two trustees vacancies, one independent and one elected
member.

At the conclusion of each Annual General Meeting, required under the constitution, two out of the
required eight independent trustees shall retire from office, but may then be re-appointed. The trustees
to retire shall consist of those who have been longest in office since they were last appointed or re-
appointed. A trustee appointed by the Council (elected members) who has served for a period of six
years shall not be eligible for re-appointment until a further period of one year has elapsed. The board
may, by way of a resolution passed by majority vote at a board meeting, waive the provisions in
relation to a particular charity trustee if they consider that exceptional considerations make that
appropriate.

The trustees as at the date of this report are as detailed on page 1.

The following appointments and resignations occurred during the year and to the date of this report:

E Donaldson Resigned 27 November 2024 R Emmott Resigned 28 March 2025
L Short Resigned 28 October 2024 K Lynn Appointed 28 October 2024
K Keenan Appointed 18 November 2024 P Thomson Appointed 12 May 2025
C Schofield Appointed 28 May 2025 L Zduniak Appointed 28 May 2025

Policies and procedures for induction and training of trustees

The ongoing training needs of trustees are considered by the board from time to time.

Organisation Structure

The Trustees meet bimonthly where decisions are taken to set the overall strategy for the SCIO as
well as to monitor its activities. Senior management are charged with the task of implementing these
decisions.

Pay policy for key management personnel

The trustees consider the board of trustees, and the senior management team to comprise the key
management personnel of the charity, in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating the

charity on a day-to-day basis. All trustees give of their time freely and no trustee received
remuneration in the year.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Pay policy for key management personnel (continued)

As Leisure & Culture Dundee has a TUPE+ agreement under The Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE) with Dundee City council, the pay of staff is set in line
with policies and procedures for setting salary grades and scales for Dundee City Council Local
Government employees. Each job description is subject to an evaluation process, which has been
agreed with CoSLA, and through this process, the post is graded accordingly. Salaries will then
increase through incremental progression through the increments of the particular grade. Reviews of
the grade will only take place if there is a significant change to the duties of the post.

Risks

The major strategic, business and operational risks that the organisation faces have been identified
and are contained within the Risk Management Policy & Business Risk Assessment which was
updated and approved by the Board in September 2024, with the Organisational Risk Register scoring
being scored on a quarterly basis, last scored in June 2025 (and to be re-scored in October 2025). In
accordance with the policy, there will be an ongoing review of risks, with a formal review annually,
which will be reported to the Board.

There are, within the assessment, identified existing controls and, where relevant, further actions
detailed with timescales for completion and identified officers responsible.

Financial sustainability is identified as a major risk for Leisure & Culture Dundee.
The controls in place to mitigate the risk are as follows:

e Quarterly monitoring position reported to the Finance and Performance Committee along with
options identified to address any adverse variances.

» Establish and maintain principles and timeline for settiement of Leisure & Culture Dundee revenue
budget in conjunction with Finance and Performance Committee and Dundee City Council, with
particular focus on any material changes to the management fee from Dundee City Council and
agreed savings to be implemented to close gap between costs and funding.

» Treasury management, ensuring surplus balances are working for Leisure & Culture Dundee.

Non-financial risks arising from health and safety, employee relations and total loss of IT are managed
by having robust policies and procedures in place and maintaining staff standards through training and
development.

In addition to this, the main standing committees, Finance & Performance, Audit Risk & Compliance,
Health & Safety and Property, and HR & Equalities all have standing agenda items to discuss the risks
following within each committee’s remit, and updates are provided at each committee meeting.
Updates from each are then presented to the Board.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Reserves policy

The organisation’s principal charitable activities are:

» The operation, management and development of Galleries, museums, and other facilities which
provide public access to collections of work of art, antiquities and objects of scientific interest;

* The development and delivery of arts and cultural activities and events, artistic programmes, and
educational projects;

e The operation, management and development of libraries and provision of library and archive
services
The operation, management and development of indoor and outdoor sports facilities
The development and delivery of sports activities directed towards wider participation in sport

These activities are funded by service fees from Dundee City Council and income generated from fees
charged to access some of the activities.

The organisation’s accounts reflect liquid or readily realisable assets, i.e. cash held to fund activities
and operating costs.

The Board considers it appropriate that the Reserves Policy be established by reference to the
organisation’s liquidity position.

Accordingly, the Board has decided that the organisation should maintain cash and readily realisable
assets equivalent to one month’s planned income to be generated from activities. Based on the
current income position, our policy requires the organisation to hold £725,000 including a minimum of
£100,000 in cash, within unrestricted reserves excluding the pension deficit. At 31 March 2025 the
unrestricted reserves excluding pension deficit were £1,204,069 and cash in bank was £3,528,605
which includes £1,357,110 of restricted funds.

The reserves policy is adopted to ensure that the organisation remains able to continue providing its
charitable activities in the event of greater volatility in our future income.

Purpose statement

To deliver, for the citizens of Dundee, and those who visit the City, high quality Leisure, Sport, Cultural
and Learning Experiences which improve their quality of life.

Objectives and activities
Principal activity

The principal activity of the SCIO is the provision of recreation and leisure facilities on behalf of
Dundee City Council in accordance with the following charitable objectives:

e To advance the arts, heritage, culture and science;

e To advance public participation in sport;

¢ To provide recreational facilities, and organise recreational activities with such
facilities/activities being made available to members of the public at large with the object of
improving their conditions of life; To advance education:;

To advance health;

* To advance citizenship and/or community development (which may include the promotion of
civic responsibility, volunteering, the voluntary sector and/or the effectiveness or efficiency of
charities);

* Torelieve those in need by reason of age, ill health, disability, financial hardship or other
disadvantage;

* To promote, establish, operate and/or support other similar schemes and projects which
further charitable purposes;
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Objectives and activities (continued)

* through the provision of services (including those entrusted to it by Dundee City Council),
which contribute to advancing well-being (primarily the wellbeing of residents of Dundee)
including (i) the operation, management and development of galleries, museums and other
facilities which provide public access to collections of works of art, antiquities and objects of
scientific interest; (ii) the development and delivery of arts and cultural activities and events,
artistic programmes, and educational projects; (iii) the operation, management and
development of libraries and provision of library and archive services; (iv) the operation,
management and development of indoor and outdoor sports facilities (including arrangements
to facilitate access to such facilities by those on lower incomes or having special needs and to
encourage wider participation in healthy exercise); (v) the development and delivery of sports
activities and events directed towards wider participation in sport; (vi) the development and
delivery of community learning and adult learning initiatives; and (vii) the delivery of services
focused on social renewal and the needs of young people.

The Trustees and employees of Leisure & Culture Dundee are expected to abide by Leisure & Culture
Dundee's Organisational Values in delivering its purpose, as set out in section 4 of the constitution:

www.leisureandculturedu ndee.com/home/about-us

The Trustees agreed a set of organisational values which highlight:

¢ The Commitment to Service Quality and Excellence:
Leisure & Culture Dundee is committed to attaining and maintaining the highest possible
standards of service quality and excellence across all of our services and to working with a
continuous focus on service improvement. This includes the way we will work and the quality of
the outputs and outcomes we aim to achieve. We will not be complacent; we will review progress,
challenge assumptions and push boundaries so that we continuously improve.
We are committed to the principles of delivering excellent public service.
We will show respect to those we work with and expect them to show respect to our staff.
We continuously seek to improve the quality of the learning and cultural experiences offered by
the organisation, and will work to include those who find it more difficult to participate, for whatever
reason.

We value diversity and retain a commitment to empowering people to become more involved in
the services we provide and the decisions which affect their lives.

These principles will underpin all of our actions.

* The Commitment to our staff being Empowered and Accountable:
We will ensure that our managers work in a way which facilitates people taking pride in their work.
This will include systems and processes to support and manage performance, so that staff are
both empowered to work effectively for Leisure & Culture Dundee, and are able to take individual
responsibility for meeting the needs of our customers.
Management will also review and address issues which may undermine staff or reduce the
effectiveness of the organisation. We will encourage and support employee and trade union
engagement in the development of the organisation.

Everyone will be accountable - this means we will recognise success as well as mistakes and
learn from these.

We know that it is the attitude, outlook and ethos of our staff that will deliver great results.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Objectives and activities (continued)
* The Commitment to actively share Knowledge and Skills:

We will value staff and Board members who harness knowledge from diverse sources and who
seek to share that knowledge across the organisation.

We will work in an environment that supports and thrives on co-operation, inter-agency working
and mutual support. Our working practices will make time and space for staff to share knowledge
and skills.

» The Commitment to ensuring Equality and promoting Diversity:

We are committed to promoting equality of opportunity which recognises and respects the
diversity of those who use our services and those who work for us.

Our Equality and Diversity Policies and Practices mirror those of Dundee City Council and seek to
promote equal treatment and opportunity for all, regardless of gender, sexuality, marital status,
race, colour, disability, religion, age, ethnicity or nationality.

e The Commitment to practice Corporate and Social Responsibility:

We will seek to ensure that our present actions do not have a negative future impact on our
community. This includes considering the environmental and ethical implications and opportunities
of our decisions and actions.

Achievements and performance
Review of activities and performance

A wide range of measures are used to assess the performance of the SCIO. These are reported to the
board on a regular basis. The main measures are related to customer visits and these are
incorporated within the Managing Director’s Report.

Financial review
Review of the year

The results for the year are shown in the attached Statement of Financial Activities and Balance Sheet
for the year to 31 March 2025. Before taking account of FRS 102 pension adjustments the surplus on
unrestricted funds amounted to £3,977 and the surplus on the restricted funds was £36,564, giving an
overall surplus of £40,541 (2024 - £159,795 surplus).

After accounting for the service costs for FRS 102 adjustments the deficit on unrestricted funds for the
year to 31 March 2025 was £322,664 and the surplus on restricted funds was £36,564. The overall
fund balances are then impacted by the actuarial gains arising on the pension scheme during the year
of £366,453 (2024 — gain of £224,971). This results in an overall surplus, or net movement in funds, of
£80,353 (2024 — surplus of £142,780), as shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Plans for future periods

Leisure & Culture Dundee has produced its strategic plan for the period 2025-2028 to tie in with the
Dundee City Plan and have commenced implementation of the related workstreams in 2025 which
focus on Our Offer, Our Infrastructure, Our People, Our Brand and Our Finances. This has been done
in conjunction with a review of the services delivered by the organisation on behalf of Dundee City
Council to ensure the ongoing financial viability of Leisure & Culture Dundee. A continuing close eye
is being kept on the income generated by the organisation across all areas of the business.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Plans for future periods (continued)

The Leisure & Cuiture Dundee Board continues to be committed to dellverlng high quality facilities and
services to the citizens of Dundee, but are mindful that some of these services may have to be
reduced or withdrawn in order that costs are kept within the funding envelope which will allow the
organisation to remain financially viable.

Auditor

So far as each trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is unaware.
Each trustee has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a trustee to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of it.

By order of the board

SMM

~ Sue Moody - 2025 11-20, 11:00:21 UTC

Sue Moody

Chair, Leisure & Culture Dundee
.......................... 2025
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

The law applicable to SCIO’s in Scotland requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the SCIO and of the
incoming resources and application of resources of the SCIO for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and then apply then consistently;
° observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP (FRS 102);
@ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

° state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the SCIO will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the SCIO and which enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and the provisions of the Constitution.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the SCIO and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Independent auditor’s report to the trustees of Leisure & Culture Dundee

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Leisure & Culture Dundee for the year ended 31 March
2025 which comprise, the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash
flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the charity’s affairs as at 31 March 2025 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources for the year then ended:;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities and Trustee
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and Regulation 8 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland)
Regulations 2006.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the SCIO in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charities ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described
in the relevant sections of this

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Trustees’ report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Independent auditor’s report to the trustees of Leisure & Culture Dundee (continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities and Trustee
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as
amended) require us to report to you if, in our opinion:

* The information given in the financial statements is inconsistent in any material respect with
the trustees’ report; or

e proper accounting records have not been kept, or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the trustees are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditor under section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment
(Scotland) Act 2005 and report in accordance with regulations made under that Act.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud, are detailed below.

As part of our planning process:

¢ We enquired of management the systems and controls the charity has in place, the areas of
the financial statements that are mostly susceptible to the risk of irregularities and fraud, and
whether there was any known, suspected or alleged fraud. Management informed us that
there were no instances of known, suspected or alleged fraud;

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks applicable to the
charity. We determined that the following were most relevant: The Data Protection Act 2018;
Health and Safety; employment law (including the Working Time Directive); and compliance
with Charity Law.

e We considered the incentives and opportunities that exist in the charity, including the extent of
management bias, which present a potential for irregularities and fraud to be perpetrated, and
tailored our risk assessment accordingly; and

* Using our knowledge of the SCIO, together with the discussions held with management at the
planning stage, we formed a conclusion on the risk of misstatement due to irregularities
including fraud and tailored our procedures according to this risk assessment.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Independent auditor’s report to the trustees of Leisure & Culture Dundee (continued)

The key procedures we undertook to detect irregularities including fraud during the course of the
audit included:

e Enquiries of entity staff and management in compliance functions to identify any instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud:
Reviewing minutes of board meetings;

* Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

* Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries
and other adjustments for appropriateness;

e Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their significant
accounting estimates, in particular the assumptions used in the pension scheme actuary
report.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is unavoidable risk that some material
misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly
planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). For instance, the further removed non-
compliance is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the
auditor is to become aware of it or to recognise the non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding
irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment,
forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation. The primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of irregularities and fraud rests with the trustees.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the trustees, as a body, in accordance with Regulation 10 of the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the charity’s trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the charity and the charity's trustees as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

| ‘{e,\m rQJ-_.‘ Seme L < (u\f‘};\{" LL /)

43:32 UTC

Henderson Loggie LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

(Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of Section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006)
The Stamp Office

Level 5

10 — 14 Waterloo Place

Edinburgh

Eh1 3EG
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Statement of financial activities for the year ended 31 March 2025

Note
Income
Charitable activities 2
Investments
Total income
Expenditure
Charitable activities 3

Net expenditure

Transfer of funds

Other recognised gains
and losses:
Re-measurement of

the defined benefit

pensions schemes 11

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted 2025 2024
general pension funds Total Total
funds fund
£ £ £ £ £
18,051,206 - 1,793,244 19,844,450 18,996,723
72,656 - - 72,656 55,291
18,123,862 - 1,793,244 19,917,106 19,052,014
(18,119,885) (326,641) (1,756,680) (20,203,206) (19.134,205)
3,977 (326,641) 36,564 (286,100) (82,191)
53,544 - (53,544) " §
- 366,453 - 366,453 224,971
57,521 39,812 (16,980) 80,353 142,780
1,146,548 (337,585) 1,374,090 2,183,053 2,040,273
1,204,069 (297,773) 1,357,110 2,263,406 2,183,053

All gains and losses recognised in the year are included above.

putting quality into life

Charity number SC042421
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Balance sheet at 31 March 2025

2025 2024
Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 6 18,088 36,176

Current assets

Stocks 7 61,120 50,733
Debtors 8 1,425,106 3,670,252
Cash in hand 3,528,605 1,208,376

5,014,831 4,929,361
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due in
one year 9 (2,471,740) (2,444,899)
Net current assets 2,543,091 2,484,462

Pension deficit 11 (297,773) (337,585)

Net assets/(liabilities) including
pension surplus/(deficit) 2,263,406 _2_1_8_3_92

Funds
Unrestricted funds 14 1,204,069 1,146,548
Less pension deficit 11 (297,773) (337,585)

906,296 808,963

Restricted funds 15 1,357,110 1,374,090

Total funds 2,263,406 2,183,053

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on ...........cccoeeee. 2025 and
signed on its behalf by:

Suwe M
I SueMoody - 2025-11-20, 11:00:21 UTC

S Moody
Chair

Charity number SC042421

The notes on pages 26 to 50 form part of these financial statements.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

2025 2024

Note £ £
Cash generated by operating activities 16 2,247,573 (1,133,514)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 72,656 55,291
Net cash provided by investing activities 72,656 55,291
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,320,229 (1,078,223)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,208,376 2,286,599
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year q 3,528,605 1,208,376
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Leisure and Culture Dundee is a Scottish Charitable Incorporated Organisation (Charity
Registration Number SC042421). The registered office address is Level 3, Central Library, The
Wellgate, Dundee, DD1 1DB.

The principal accounting policies adopted, judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty in the preparation of the financial statements are as follows:

Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and Accounting and Reporting by Charities; Statements of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SOF\fP 2019 (FRS
102)) and the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102).

Leisure & Culture Dundee meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the SCIO.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

Funds
Funds are classified as either restricted funds or unrestricted funds, defined as follows:

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific trusts, which may be declared by the donor or with
their authority. Some are restricted income funds expendable at the discretion of the Board in
furtherance of a particular activity, such as government grants for a specific centre, and funds
raised for particular client groups or activities. Others are capital funds where the assets are
required to be invested for long term use.

Unrestricted funds are expendable at the discretion of the Board in furtherance of the objectives
of Leisure & Culture Dundee. If part of the unrestricted funds is earmarked at the d‘lscretlon of
the Board for a particular project it is designated as a separate fund. This designation has an
administrative purpose only, and does not legally restrict the Board's discretion to apply the
fund.

A transfer is made from unrestricted funds to restricted funds to compensate fully all restricted
funds which would otherwise be in deficit at the accounting date.

Income

Income is recognised when the charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions
attached to the item(s) of income have been met, it is probable that the income will be received
and the amount can be measured reliably.

Income from government and other grants, whether ‘capital’ grants or ‘revenue’ grants, is
recognised when the charity has entitiement to the funds, any performance conditions attached

to the grants have been met, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can
be measured reliably and is not deferred.

putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 26
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Income (continued)

For legacies, entitlement is taken as the earlier of the date on which either: the charity is aware
that probate has been granted, the estate has been finalised and notiﬁcation_ ha_s bqen ma_de by
the executor(s) to the charity that a distribution will be made, or when a distribution is received
from the estate. Receipt of a legacy, in whole or in part, is only considered probablt’e when the
amount can be measured reliably and the charity has been notified of the executor s intention to
make a distribution. Where legacies have been notified to the charity, or the charity is aware of
the granting of probate, and the criteria for income recognition have not been met, then the
legacy is a treated as a contingent asset and disclosed if material.

Income received in advance of an event, performance or provision of other specified service is
deferred until the criteria for income recognition are met.

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the charity; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
bank.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a pay_ment to
a third party, it is probable that settiement will be required and the amql{nt of thg obligation can
be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified under the following activity headings:

» Expenditure on charitable activities includes the costs of providing services and their
associated support costs.

Irrecoverable VAT, due to partial exemption, is included within supplies and services in note 3.

Support costs are those functions that assist the work of the charity but do not directly undertake
charitable activities. Support costs include back office costs, finance, personnel, payroll and
governance costs which support the charity’s activities. These costs have been allocated to
expenditure on charitable activities.

Pensions

The Authority participates in the Tayside Superannuation Fund by virtue of its status as an
“admitted body”. This is a defined benefit scheme, and the assets are invgsteq in external
funds. Dundee City Council sponsor Leisure & Culture Dundee's participation in the scheme
and in the event of the charity winding up the pension liability will be payable by Dundee City
Council.

The costs of providing pensions are charged to the profit and loss account on a c_onsistent basis
over the working lifetime of the members. These costs are determined by a qualified actuary

and any variations from the regular costs are spread over the remaining working lifetime of the
current members.

Leases

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Fixed assets

When expenditure of a capital nature is incurred by Leisure & Culture Dundee, this expepd{tuie
will be capitalised and depreciated over an agreed period, defined as its “useful economic life”.
Expenditure should be capitalised when it is:

* Acquisition, enhancement, construction or replacement of buildings or other §tructures
* Acquisition, installation or replacement of plant, machinery, apparatus or vehicles

Enhancing an asset would be lengthening the useful economic life of the asset or increasing its
market value. Expenditure on maintaining an assets previous standard of performance or useful
life will be recognised as revenue.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write-off the cost, less
estimated residual value, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life. . o

The useful economic life of each asset will be determined on its own merits but it is anticipated
that it will roughly fall into one of the following categories,

* Tenants improvements 10-15 years

All capitalised expenditure will be recorded at historic cost and depreciated using the straight
line method over the agreed useful life of the asset.

Impairment of fixed assets _

At each reporting end date, the charity reviews the carrying amounts of its tanglble_ assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Stocks

Stocks of materials and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
the ordinary course of operating.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies that are
consistent with the treatment of the charity as a going concern.

Dundee City Council agreed to continue it's financial support to Leisure & Culture Dundee in the
nature of allowing the Council to undertake cash flow management support which will allow _the
organisation to remain in credit at all times and meet cash liabilities. The continqed support is
subject to the organisation using its best endeavours and taking appropriate action to minimise
any losses and to continue to work in Partnership with Dundee City Council to access any
available external funding. Management and Board members have identified actions in respect
of income generation and expenditure savings to deliver ongoing financial sustainability with
discussions ongoing as to what is included in the service agreement.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Going concern (continued)

On this basis, and with sufficient reserves available to cover any losses incurred that are not part
of the support of Dundee City Council, the trustees are of the opinion that Leisure & Culture
Dundee can continue to meets its obligations as they fall due over the next 12 months from the
date of the audit report and as such have prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits

The costs of short term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless
those costs are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s
services are received.

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the SCIO is o
demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination
benefits.

Financial instruments

The SCIO has elected to apply the provision of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial In_strl_Jments’ and
Section 12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the SCIO’s statement of financial position when the
SCIO becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial
statements, when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised g_mounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Basic financial assets o
Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are |n|t|a_IIy
measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently c_:arned at
amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of th(_e future o
receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as receivable within
one year are not amortised.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each reported end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows have been affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference betweep
the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying
amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not
previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash flows frqm the
asset expire or are settled, or when the SCIO transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of
ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the SCIO after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities )
Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and
preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transact!on price unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is mea:s.ured at
the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial
liabilities classified as payable within one year are not amortised.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in t!'\e o
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities o .
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the SCIO’s contractual obligations expire or are
discharged or cancelled.

Accounting estimates

In the trustees’ opinion, the only figure in these account which results from a significant es}imate
is the defined benefit pension scheme liability, calculated by the pension scheme actuary in
compliance with FRS 102.

The actual performance is unlikely to be in line with actuarial valuation as a result of the
valuation being based upon assumptions on future unpredictable events such as return on
assets and materiality rates.

The estimate has a material impact on the accounts and is explained in more detail in note 11.
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Income

Unrestricted Restricted 2025

funds funds Total

£ £ £

Admissions etc 4,200,660 23,324 4,223,984
Membership 1,832,105 . 1,832,105
Library income 205,096 - 205,096
Hire of facilities 86,821 - 86,821
Resaleable goods 270,431 439 270,870
Funding 405,568 1,747,240 2,152,808
Other income 734,363 22,241 756,604
Catering income 301,162 - 301,162
Service fee 10,015,000 - 10,015,000
18,051,206 1,793,244 19,844,450

Unrestricted Restricted 2024

funds funds Total

£ £ £

Admissions etc 3,189,884 2,480 3,192,364
Membership 1,247,304 - 1,247,304
Library income 202,644 - 202,644
Hire of facilities 89,946 - 89,946
Resaleable goods 210,804 454 211,258
Funding 358,245 1,649,732 2,007,977
Other income 841,688 174,015 1,015,703
Catering income 271,925 - 271,825
Service fee 10,757,602 - 10,757,602
17,170,042 1,826,681 18,996,723
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3

putting quality into life

Costs of providing service

Employee costs

Pension costs

Property costs

Supplies and services

Transport costs

Pension finance costs

Pension administration expenses
Governance costs

Employee costs

Pension costs

Property costs

Supplies and services

Transport costs

Pension finance costs

Pension administration expenses
Governance costs

Governance costs

Audit fees

Chanty number SC042421
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Unrestricted Restricted 2025
funds Funds Total
£ £ £
14,645,512 1,336,755 15,982,267
327,223 - 327,223
377,764 3,743 381,507
2,928,951 398,477 3,327,428
145,626 17,705 163,331
(26,578) - (26,578)
25,996 - 25,996
22,032 - 22,032
18,446,526 1,756,680 20,203,206
Unrestricted Restricted 2024
Funds Funds Total
£ £ £
13,970,539 1,298,032 15,268,571
251,731 - 251,731
264,519 11,299 275,818
2,795,318 311,679 3,106,997
194,741 27,787 222528
(29,960) - (29,960)
20,217 - 20,217
18,303 - 18,303
17,485,408 1,648,797 19,134,205
2025 2024
£ £
22,032 18,303
22,032 18,303



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

5 Staff numbers and costs - S0
£ £

Wages and salaries and other staff costs 13,107,364 12,287,676

Social security costs 1,087,202 1,025,559
Pension costs 1,787,701 1,955,336
Superannuation and past service costs 327,223 164,670

16,309,490 15,433,241

No member of the Board received remuneration or any expenses other than trustees indemnity
insurance in either year from the charity.

Judy Dobbie a frustee and member of the senior management team, is remunerated through
Dundee City Council, and received remuneration of £159,539 (2024 - £156,817).

The average monthly number of employees, based on head count, of the charity during the
year was 591 (2024 - 625).

During the year, no employees received remuneration between £60,000 and £70,000 (2024 -
2), no employees received remuneration of between £70,000 and £80,000 (2024 — 1), 1
employee received remuneration of between £80,000 and £90,000 (2024 — 1) and 1 employee
received remuneration of between £120,000 and £130,000 (2024 — 1).

Key management personnel consists of Managing Director, Acting Head of Library and
Cultural Services, Head of Corporate Services, and Head of Leisure, Sport and Physical
Activity The total remuneration of the five (2024 - ten) members of the senior management
team is £508,536 (2024 - £834,772), including £159,539 (2024- £156,817) paid by Dundee
City Council as noted above. The charity has undergone a restructure of key management
personnel during the year and key management personnel now consists of the personnel
noted on page 1 of the financial statements.

6 Fixed assets
Tenants

Improvements
Cost
At 1 April 2024 176,910
At 31 March 2025 176,910
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2024 140,734
Depreciation charged in the year 18,088
At 31 March 2025 158,822
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2025 _1_ ti,t_igg
At 31 March 2024 36,176
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Stocks

2025 2024
£ £
Stocks 61,120 50,733

8 Debtors
2025 2024
£ £
Trade debtors 308,303 521,780
Prepayments and accrued income 334,100 71,079
Other debtors 27,600 -
Dundee City Council 755,103 3,077,393

1,425,106 3,670,252

9 Creditors

2025 2024
£ £

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade creditors 142,529 166,640
Dundee City Council 955,762 974,089
Accruals 1,049,728 1,027,338
Deferred income 323,721 250,185
Other taxation and social security - 26,647

2,471,740 2,444 899

Deferred income consists of amounts received during the year relating to events to be held

after the year end.
2025 2024
£ £

Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 April 2024 250,185 306,257

Released in year {250,185) (306,257)

Received in year 323,721 250,185
323,721 250,185
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Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

10

1

putting quality into life

Commitments

Lessee

Total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Land & Buildings

2025

£

Due within one year 25
Due in two to five years 100
Due in more than five years 150
275

2024
£

29
116
203

2025
£

348

Lease payments recognised as an expense during the year amounted to £29 (2024 - £29).

The land and buildings commitment is the rent payable to the Dundee City Council for the use
of the premises for the provision of recreation and leisure facilities on behalf of the Council for

the period to 2036.

Pension

Leisure & Culture Dundee is an admitted body to the Local Government Pension Scheme which
is a funded defined benefit scheme. During the year Leisure & Culture Dundee made employers

contributions of £1,787,701 (2024 - £1,955,336).

i) Retirement benefit scheme deficit

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at 1 April 2024

Current service cost

Interest cost

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions
Experience loss/(gain) on defined benefit obligation
Past service costs, including curtailments
Contributions — employee

Benefits paid

Unfunded payments

Benefit obligations at end of year

Charity number SC042421 35
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2025
£

60,719,876
2,108,516
2,928,009

(9,910,214)
(144,031)
(116,397)

669,070
(2,598,374)
(23,234)

53,633,221

2024
£

53,841,201
2,119,658
2,563,527
(583,756)

(1,065,257)
4,679,652

87,061
630,448
(1,530,888)
(21,770)

60,719,876



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1

putting quality into life

Pension (continued)

Change in scheme assets

Fair value of scheme assets at 1 April 2024
Interest on assets

Return on assets less interest

Other actuarial gains/(losses)
Administration expenses

Contributions - employee

Benefits paid

Contributions - employer

Fair value of scheme assets at end of year

Impact of asset ceiling

Retirement benefit (asset)/deficit

Reconciliation to the balance sheet
Present value of funded scheme liabilities
Fair value of scheme assets at end of year
Present value of unfunded obligations
Impact of asset ceiling

Retirement benefit asset/(deficit)

ii) Amounts recognised in net expenditure

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest costs
Administrative expenses

iii) Re-measurements of the net assets/(defined liability)

Return on fund assets in excess of interest
Other actuarial gains / (losses) on assets
Change in demographic assumptions

Change in financial assumptions

Experience gain on defined benefit obligations
Impact of asset ceiling
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2025 2024
£ £
84,201,754 69,806,612
4,121,741 3,375,214
(1,391,582) 6,308,172
: 3,699,195
(25,996) (20,217)
669,070 630,448
(2,621,608) (1,552,658)
1,781,293 1,954,988
86,734,672 84,201,754
33,399,224 23,819,463
297,773 337,585
(53,335,448)  (60,382,291)
86,734,672 84,201,754
(297,773) (337,585)
(33,399,224)  (23,819,463)
(297,773) (337,585)
2,108,516 2,206,719
(26,578) (29,960)
25,996 20,217
2,107,934 2,196,976
(1,391,582) 6,308,172
: 3,699,195
144,031 1,065,257
9,910,214 583,756
116,397 (4,679,652)
(8,412,607)  (6,751,757)
366,453 224,971
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

11

putting quality into life

Pension (continued)

iv) Financial assumptions

The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuary in updating the most

recent valuation to 31 March 2025 for FRS 102 purposes were:

Discount rate

Consumer price inflation/retail price inflation
Rate of increase of salaries

Rate of increase of pensions in payment

Life expectancy from age 65
Retiring today:

Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

The assets of the scheme were:

Asset category
Equities

Gilts

Other bonds
Property

Cash
Alternatives

Amounts included in the fair value of assets for:
Equities

Gilts

Other bonds

Property

Cash

Alternatives

Total market value of assets
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2025
%

5.85
2.90
3.90
2.90

2025
Years

18.8
21.7

100.0

2025
£

57,606,105
5,532,134
5,711,370

13,160,761
4,701,353

22,949

2024
%

4.90
290
3.90
2.90

2024
Years

189
216

60,720,502
5,312,754
5532,104
7.463,769
5.152,194

20,431

84,201,754



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

12

13

14

putting quality into life

Related party transactions

Leisure & Culture Dundee was contracted to provide recreation and leisure services by

Dundee City Council. In the year to 31 March 2025 Leisure & Culture Dundee received from
Dundee City Council £10,935,803 (2024 - £11,396,111) for services provided and paid them
£415,768 (2024 - £587,919) for goods and services received including a peppercorn rent for
the use of the facilities occupied by Leisure & Culture Dundee. At 31 March 2025 Dundee City
Council owed Leisure & Culture Dundee £755,102 (2024 - £3,077,393) and the charity owed

Dundee City Council £955,762 (2024 - £974,089) in relation to nommal trading activities.

Control

The Members of Leisure & Culture Dundee are Dundee City Council and D.C.C. Nominees

Ltd.

The trustees are appointed by the Members and 5 of the 13 trustees of Leisure &_Culture
Dundee are appointed from the Council (38%) while the other 8 trustees are required to be

independent of the Council.

Funds

Analysis of movements in funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted pension deficit
Designated funds

Restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted pension deficit
Designated funds

Restricted funds

Charnity number SC042421

LACD 2025 Final Accounts.pdf [16436641-1d74-48c4-a562-c67d0613deed) Page: 40 / 53

Transfer Balance at
Balance at 1 Net income/ between 31 March
April 2024 (expenditure) funds 2025
£ £ £ £
1,110,372 22,065 53,544 1,185,981
(337,585) 39,812 - (297,773)
36,176 (18,088) = 18,088
808,963 43,789 53,544 906,296
1,374,090 36,564 (53,544) 1,357,110
2,183,053 80,353 - 2,26_3_,;4(_)2
Transfer Balance at
Balance at 1 Net income/ between 31 March
April 2023 (expenditure) funds 2024
£ £ £
1,110,371 1 1,110,372
(320,568) (17,017) (337,585)
54,264 (18,088) 36,176
844,067 (35,104) 808,963
1,196,206 177,884 1,374,090
2,040,273 142,780 2,183,053
38



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14 Funds (continued)

Unrestricted funds The ‘free reserves' after allowing for all designated funds.
Unrestricted pension deficit The pension deficit liability (note 11).
Designated funds Balance of designated funds relates to value of capitalised assets.
Restricted funds Analysis of restricted funds is shown in note 15.
Analysis of net assets over funds

Unrestricted

LACD 2025 Final Accounts.pdf [d6436641-1d74-48c4-a5e2-c67d0613deed] Page: 41/ 53

Unrestricted Designated pension Restricted
2025 Funds funds deficit funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £
Fixed assets - 18,088 - - 18,088
Bty gtig - i . 1 42'15’: :g
Debtors 1,223,939 - - 201,167 Y429,
Cash 2,352,169 . - 1,176,436 3,528,605
Creditors (2,451,247) - - (20,493) (2,471,740)
Pension deficit - - (297,773) - (297,773)
1,185,981 18,088 (297,773) 1,357,110 2,263,5(_)9
Unrestricted _
Unrestricted Designated pension Restricted
2024 funds funds deficit funds Total funds
£ £ £ £ £
Fixed assets - 36,176 = - 36,176
Stocks 50,733 - = - 50,733
Debtors 3,324,071 - - 346,181 3,670,252
Cash 124,224 - 1,084,152 1,208,376
Creditors (2,388,656) . - (56,243) (2,444,892)
Pension deficit . . (337,585) - (337,585)
1,110,372 36,176 (337,585) 1,374,090 2,183,053
putting quality into life Charity number SC042421 39



092
ooy

£8z‘0}

S88

seL‘6l

s
6bL'G
0’s
£Lp'9Z
1]
1544 ¥id

SZ02Z
yauey Lg
je sduejeg

(061'8) (01602)
- (886°2)
. (9002)
- {st0's)
(000°1) -
(o0z°L) -

- (zzo'y)
: (825°L)
(¢29'¢) -

(c96) -
(pov‘L) -

- (cze's)
3 3

JeeA u 1e9A Wl
siojsues)] armipusdxgy

Zre'sl

8810}

900
06922
oot

196°}
000°6
609'92

3
Jeak

ul dwodu|

ov

yO¥'9ES

000't
00zZ't
€8z'ol

106'}

€29’
€96
geL'6l
pov'l
¥¥2's
88.'¢

[A 4
A A
s8lL'y
I51°19¥

3

¥202Z 1adv |
Je 9oue[eg

€6/ zp :abed [PeapE L 90PL90-Zo5E- YO8V 2P L~} ¥O9EPIP] Jpd SIUNO®Y (BU 520 AJV

1ZbZrOIS Jequinu Aueyd

iIeH

piep oy} Je opeibdn juewdinbs Buusied
‘80Jnosal auljuo

ue Buidojaasp jo asodind 8y} 10} SMIIPUY IS
Jo Aisisnun ayyje AIgisiH Wy JO |00UDS 8u)
UY3iM UOIEIOGE(|CO Ul SUORDS||00 Alojsly [e00)|
woyj sway pajejal [[ey snw Buguawnoog
snueow 8yl 1e uole|eIsul A3

SNUeOn
ay] je qny aumeu [euoneanpd ue Hugeai)
10pd Awouode

Buuane AJee ul uojedioned jo uoisirold
pawwelboid

se sjuans geo Aleusius) |leH PIeD
QN0 1s0d uoijesiuebio

alp ym sbebus-a1 0} saAijeqiul Juswdojansp
saualpne eIA Jysuaq ygnd Bupeayeq
SHaJU0] swhyaum

Jljeen) saun| @ B9 Sy} elA Buos pue disnw
ybnong obenbug| dleen o Bumpioddng

SIA81-Z} pabe ajdoad

BunoA 1o} sdoysyiom oisnw aseqpunog
uoniqyx3

sanuan douewloyad Joy Buipunj QINOD
sSUs0U0D Juswdojsasg 2SN

[leH pdies Joj ouerd mau jo aseyaind
swweiBoid uswdopasqg aisny
juswdoasq dIsny

alIsYdS spremy Juaswudoaaq sisniy
juswdoaaq SN

uoneAIasuod pue suayisinboe wnasny

asoding

ay) oyu1 Ayjenb Bumind

pJEMIO} POLIED

juswdnb3 Buusie |eH pited

siieH 21sniy 8y | Buidde
ALDD snuepon
|guawnysu| sapung

snuepNoW 241 1e sadeosT pIM

10/1d Awouoo] Buluaazg Ape3
SjusA3 e|es Areusjua) (leH ped

lleH plien - suopesiuebip
[einyny oy pund  AUSA0DSY

snound N 1sa4
juswdopaag

QISNIN - suogesiueblo
einyng  Jop pund  Alsacday
sdeusiy 8yl ssiuag

pun4 JoN9y sy SouelIoNSd
SH3JUOD) SWYIUNT

aseyaind Aemuials

SUOISSag SSBgPUNOg

jueig yuawudojaaag INA

Splemy 1SRV [ensiA sspung

1884 uoisnd sspung

pung uogisinboy

S32IAJ9S |RINYND

pung

SZ0Z YoLeW L POpUS Jeak J0) SPUNy pejoLISaY St

{panunuos) sjusweye)s |e1ouruy ayy 0) SN

9spunq ainjjny g AINSIa



662929

0ro'z
zL6'sl

12621

199'9
£v0'S

000°02

000°z

000'52
9179°98S

3

202
yosew Lg
je souejeg

(es2'c2)

(v25%)
(s6L'e)

(59¢°c)
(000°1L)
(zoh)

(sze‘s)

(o61°8)

3
Jeak w

si1gjsuri)

(¥sz'12)

(o16'02)

3
Jeak ul

ampuadx3

Tre'azl

000's2
Tret'eL

3
1eak

u) awosuj

134

196'¥8S

¥16°T
g6l'e

691'C
TL6°G)

SoE'e
000°L
01

LE6TL
5z¢e'S

199'9
852's

Yov'9eS

3

¥Zoz udv L
JE 22UelEeg

€6/ £F :abed [Pa9pE L90PL90-Z9GE- YO8 Y LPL- 1L P99EYIP] jpd-sjunocoy [euld 5202 AOV'1

1ZrZP0OS rPquinu ey

SHOA PuE 8 0} Acessy] Bunjun

synpy Buno A Joj [eAllse4 € Joj Gulpuny

11 pue Bujj|sgAio]s Ul 3OUSPLUCD

dojaaep o) Buuten yes jo Aisansp yoddng
Aeiqi| flequa) Ul

uapueB Buraqjispn Joopul ue jo uswdojarag
suoijeuop pue Buisies pund

uaipjiyd

10} ko yos o} juswyoepe Guuojdxs josloid
$300g SuAIP|IYR Joy Buipung

qno yeud Jinpe Joj buipung

sasodind paje|a Aseiqi)

snouean 0} uogejer ul syib pue sjsenbeg
sioloyns eIxa|sAQ Joj Joeloid Buipeay
JUSLIBAIOAUI

Iepn Jeal aspung Duneiqajso  sjusaz
29pun( Ui saousuadxe

JEM UO }00Q S,USJP|IYd B UM UBD SIoyIny

KiojensasqQ si|IW @y Hoddns o suojeuoq
‘anyns

u uogedioed o) sialweq Bupnpas o MalA
e m sojdouud aaissaiddo-gue uo paseq
UNPMUISaI 0} SAlEnIUl [BUORBU S,PUBOIS
sels|esy swnasnly sy ul uogedwoiued
‘Riayoe

2AQE310 YBNouy) SU0iD[00 WNSSNLW pUe He
uauewssd sA19 sS4 Ul JUSWIBA|OAUI JBjealb
0} Buipes| souspyuco pesessou sbeinoous
0} sopunpoddo  eajeals  Buipiaold

asoding

plemio) paLue)

Buipung D[S -SUCO oML
6ujeruog |eubig

Aieiqr] jenyus) - usplen Buaqiiom
uoisuaix3 Aeiqi Awed Aybnoig

salppa L Inog upje) sty sibowe)
pun4 jsni| %008 YsiRoos
uapy qnID Yelrd Ynpy

saoineg Aieiqi eapun( o) sisenbag
ABajengs Buipeay Ysinoos

s9pun(] Jepp JESID

Iep Jesic) ay) Ul @apung
uogeuuocjul pue Areiqry
suoneuoq Al0yen1asqo sl

abuey) Buusnieq

snueyop buiwes aagesIy

pleauoy Jybnoig

puny

(panupuod) spunj pajaysay

3y oyt Ayrenb Bumnd

Sl

(panunuo) sjuswajeys e ueUly 8y} 0} SAION

9apunq ainyjny @ aINsIo



A4 1Zrer00s Jequinu Aueyo ay) ojul Ayjenb Bumnd
LLV'6.9 (09Z'eh) (L¥p'62) £¥6'8ZL Sez'ez9 plemio} palued
'sy00q Bo| Buileym jo uogesnbIp sy}
Bupnjoul ‘ebueyd sjewife pue Ajiqeulesns
punoJe ssnss| JuaLno pue Agsnpul
18 - - - 118 Buifeym ayj ussmaq sHul sy} Buuojdxy  aiming g 1sed swiuep ssspung
Aunwwos
- (z¢p) - - $Y [B20] 943 O} oW Jeynb sa) Bupinold  SuossaT JEING Ateiqr SpISPIOD
Alunwwod
261 - (sov) z6s L 1e00] Y3 0} uom Jeynf say Guipircld poo4 pue und sulieg sapung
Jojuim 3 Buunp Alunwwod
13 ; G 28) e .9 ayy Aq asn Joj soeds wuem e jo Buipirold  @dedg AsoQ Aleiqi] (IyseZUSN
Jaquim oy Buunp Qlunwwod
oY) JO SIeqUIaW 10} SJUSWYSALEI Ylim aoeds
981 - - - o8/ a|qe1o0s ‘Bulwodjom ‘Wiem € jo UoISIAold a20eds Ason) Aleiq) uoissiieyd)
Sy . (26) 8¢l ¥ aoeds uuem e Buipinoid seordg Aso) ssawjoe|g
6 - (gsy) 297 - aoeds uuem e Buipiaold sooedg Ason As4 Aubnoug
Jajuim 3y Bunp Ajunwiwod [eco] sy
s¢T - (asi) 1] 62z Joj soeds uuem e pue syuup joy 8y} Buipirold soedg As09 Atesgr Aguld
Jsuim ayy Buunp Agunwwod
- (ve) - - ve oy Aq pesn aq a} sdeds uuem e Bulplaold BuiAr jo 350 Spisp|oD
188 - (218°6) = 85L'9 saleiq) 1o} Buipuny QINOS  pund Jeliey piaoD Alegr olgnd
- (9c8) - - 98 S3IAROR SuaIpIYD ano Bupje spog suajsinyuy
- (6£2) - - 6cT SUOISSSS SN YINOA dnoig yinoA ¢ Buipuay gnH
(sz1) - - szl SUOISSaS JISNW YINOA 109loid 2SN 2 JEIINS gNH
Aieign) Areiqry jooy Aquig
- {>:) . & €8 A4 je Aelq [0 Aunwwod jo dn 188
mz. 3 mmwmv A.an- wom a0l puegoog yaap yoog Buunp suaaz PUE|JOOS 3339/ Yoog
88 SAIAROE SUSIP|IUD 6uipoD g YyesosUI S,USIPIYD
) (Zvo'oL) . siipis Ajjiqefodwe
Zro'ol - - Zyooi asealnul O} dMA yum Bupiom diysisuped dMa
. JiomaLLEl 4 UOHE)IPIIOIY
- (gzz'9) - - €ez'9 slagunjoA ssuelq) agnd Joy Buipung UOIBUPAIIDY JS3UN|OA
me 929 womh £2) Wmm. 12) wvn.on_. wom.vmm preauoy ybnoug
5Z0Z Jeafu 1eak wy Jeak vzoz nady L asoding pung
yoltey 1S slajsued] aumipuadxg ul 3wooau| je 9ouejeg
je adueeg

£6/ i :9B8d [P39PE L 90PLI0-ZOSE-PORI-PLP L~ L ¥TEYIP] Jpd SN0V |EUIS SZ0T OV

(penuguod) spuny pajouisey Gl

{penunuoa) syuawsieys [BI9UBLL 3y} O} SAION

93punq ainy|ny) R ainsia



€6 / S :96d [POaPE L90P LOO-ZOSE-ORY-VLP -1 YOYEYSP) Jpd SIUNOY [ELd §20Z AOVT

194 LZZP00S fequnu Areyd ay) oyt Ayenb Bumnd
LLS €98 (g9¢'68) (vev'esd) 006'228 gsP'ess PIEMIO] PILLED
sispuny snoleA — SHN
L2 - {sse'rl) L100'S) 296’} yum diysssuped u) swweiBoid Gunjepm yyesy o} sdaig
- (15e°2) - - 15€'C Buipun) saliAgoe JOORINQO sisbuelield
vev'vl = (068) . yee'st Buipuny sSNIARDE JOORNO SeAIEd
sjooyos
- " (962°228) 962°TLS - uym ssiagoe Buniods Joj Bulpuny m.oo_._omm NIy
uipung
80L'sT " (16£°1) - 661'ST fuyels 54y 1oy Buipuny anua) souellopied [euoibay
000'9 - - - 000'9 Buipuny snquui yods Aiigesiq sspung
80L'ze . - - 80L'z¢e yooloud Buiagjjam pue ssaujly 100014 ue|iLuoey 0N A0H
96828 = (92£'s1) A zi2'es 000 % S50 Auadold sniding pefife] oW
Se1'8S = (ove'sr) ove‘or Se1'8S [lecRoo4 19048 10§ Saydeod Bulpiroid |leqqood 18848
6058 - (0g6'28) 8¢L'lS L0L'v) swobebua funwwo)d JaoyO qnH sHodg Aunwiwod
qnH
= v (zvz‘L) 4 74l - Runwwod (Iysszusi e J0ejjuquaq wewdinb3 spods |lysezusiy
o - (esL'9) 6S1'9 " yuswdojpAsp |leqiood lleqioo4
- (#SS°LE) = : ¥SSLE juswdojaasq AgBny Agbny
pods pue ainsia
sjnpe
10§ sAOYSHIOM PUE SBNJALOE SANEUD
oL 5 . Sz - ploy 07 seiddns |euchIppe JO aSBYANG Isnu | saufeq —saniNpPY UELD
Aueay leryin pue pajuawbny
1o s16eW aY) BIA Bu||[2)AI0)S SAISISWIW]
Lop - (sso‘9) - 6159 Buisn pue ssoeds 21gqnd Buneuuy ey K10)g
- (862°1) = . 86Z'1 uJp|Iyd Joj SSIJIAIROR JSWWNG un4 Jo JSWwWNg
sjuauwiedw
[ensiA Yum siswolsno Aleiqgr Joj
= (ssv) = - g6¥ alnsea|d Jo} BuipesJ Joy Yoddns papuspq paJreduyj Ajjensia 10} Guipeay
Aunwwod sy Aq asn
* (1e1) . - 1€t 10} 90eds ULEeM e pue saqIAE Buipiacld Aeiqi [enua) Je siooq usdp
*sdljlwey pue UsJpjIy [exo] 0} Buliayo
Sqnp jooyosIaye ASam soueyus
= (122) - - (W4 0} S80Inosal [euonippe Jo aseyaind sqn|D sualpjiyd u spuswaaosdw|
wnv, 619 wcww.nvv Aw_.v.v.muv wva.mﬂ_. wmw.mmw pieauoy JyBnolg
§Z0Z Jeak ul Jeak uy Ieak vzoz wdy | asoding pung
yorew ¢ sJajsuel ) aimipuadxgy uy awodu| je aouejeg
je aoueeg

(penuguoo) spunypajoisay Sl

{panunuos) syuswageys [edUBUL aY) 0] SSION

aspunq ainyjny  aInsiaT



P 1Z¥2r00s ;equinu Aweyd 9 oy Ayjenb Buming
0LL'ISEL (prs'es) (089°952'1) yrT'eeL’t 060'7.LE'1
aapun( Joj ubisaqg
180'G12Z - (L20'2Y) St2'08¢ 201'092 10 A9 09S3ANN % soslfoud [aiming diysisuped aoe|d
s99ines poddng
“1ayo Busixe 1no
Jo Hed se pue juswuanaus BuiBeinoous
pue 3jes B Ul 2NIOE 0] SAJOEU| Lo
anow oy 9doad Bupoddns v yoeoidde
panuss-uosiad e spiaaid 0) Jojeulpio
0sZ'9 - = 0sZ'9 = -09 Buisq|iam aNjoY ue mc_“_zbomm Buisqiiapn 2A0Y
spods
oytoads ul s|Ipis asay) dojarap pue SiIbS
[exsAyd oiseq LIE3| 0] USIPIYI [O0YOS
6L0'% ¥ (osz's) 6£e'6 - Aewud Joj suoisses Ajnie wods fIny UOISIAOLJ AYNIOY SUBIPIYD
yods aye swwesboid
000°S . . 000's . ) sjoausseib woyy skemyed Buidojoreq  sousuuopdgd o) ' opisAel
‘saqiunpoddo sljelen bunop
Aynipoe eaisiyd pue pods ssaooe o}
yoddns pue sdiysuoije|al 81es.0 0] SI9JBD
BunoA aie oym ajdoad Bunok yum >pom
sle‘e - (18z‘s) 000°1 009'sL 0} YBIS Jo Jaquisw pajesipap e Butfodw3
) awweboid s100YaS SAGIY S8pung spslold S|00YdS SNV
syLZY - (£96°2¢) 0LZ'sy 18’z ay) Buyuswidwoo syoaloid snouep
556'29 - (v0g) {008) 65£°69 ualpjiyo 10} SSIANOE JSLIWING 10} SJUBID Jawwng o J89
026'sZ ¥SS°LL (820°95) 000°LS Z6e'slL sl wesboid juswdojareg Aqbny soueyu3 1300 Qn|O AgBny
scg'ee 2 (gee'ss) 0SL'vS 9zZv'le paloid uoisniou) S|00YIS 3NIOY UoISN(OU| S00Y3G SAY
. S|ooyag BAIY Alwed
081°02 - - - 08102 aAgoY Aq unJ yoefoid saniaioe axig
. aljuan JOopING Wniouy ybnol ool
zee' “ (£p6'v92) 098'652 Siv'L suoissas Bz_ms_m mu_>oa< .u EEM SRS QSRS S
) n Bujjofo ybnouy) sa|fysey) Apeay sjowosd puejjoog Buipiy
(sgz‘s) - - SeL'S 03 uawdmnba Jo aseyoind 1o Juels)
168'85 - (oL2'ssh) 0.6'¢Sk 1£9'85 -~ swweiboid [oARLL SNJOVY
) ) All9p [9AB)) SAl0B 9S JO UOISIAOY
w ls'cog .unmm 65) Awmv.nmt 006°2Z8 8sv'es8 | PRI ¢ pieauoy ybnosg
3 3
SzZ0T Jeak ut Jeak uy Jeak ud
WueWls  siejsuer)  eampusdx3 uy awoou| bty seading pnd
Je 3duElRg

€5/ ov :abed [pospE190PL90-23GE-YORY-VLPL- L YI9EYOP] jpd sjUno0y |euld 5202 AoV

(penunuoo) spuny pajoiyssy S|

(panunuos) sjuawaje)s je1dURULS 3Y) 0} SBION

@apunq ainny p aINsSI9T]



S¥ 1ZHTP0OS Bqunu AUEYD ay| o Ayenb Bumng
685995 - (p05'99) $60'08 $66'9.LS PIEMIO) PILED
sasodind pajeja1 Aseiql
1e6°2t = ] - 1€6°C1 snowea o} uonelal u syib pue jsenbeg  saopueg Aue.gr 8apung o} sissnbeg
6ze's . = - 6Ze's sialayns exs|siQ Lo yosfoid Buipeeyd ABejeng Buipeay ysinoos
JUSLUSAJOAUI
2999 = - = 199'9 Jepy yeus) sapung Buneigeiso sjusa3 s9pung Jepn 3eslo
8sz's - (00s) = 86L'S @epunq ul seoualiadxe Jem
uo jo0q S,UBIPIIYD B Sjm UeDd Sioyiny JEAA 1B3I5) B ul sepung
uonjew.Ioju| pue Aesqr
SNUBINOIN SYL
000°} - (806°1) 802 0042 1B qny aimeu |euojednps ue Buneaip snuepo 8y Je sadeos3 Pl
j01d Awoucos
00Z't o = - 00Z'L Buiuaas Apes uy uoiediogied Jo uoisiaald 10|1d Awouoo3 Bujuang Ae3
pawwesboxd
£8Z°01 - (228'p1) 00S 099'vZ se sjuere ele9) Aleusjua) IeH RIED sjuaA3 eleg Aieuaual |[eH pie)
aIno9 1s0d uonesiuebio ay)
_ yum sbebua-a) 0} sealjeqiul Juswdojaasp lleH pireD — suogesiuebio
106'1L = = = 106°L sousipne eiA Jyauaq Jqnd Bupsmeqg (emmnd o} pund Aianooay
SH30UOD BWNYoUNT d|eEY
saun| ' ea] 8y ela Buos pue aisnw
- - (oev'y) ocY'l - yBnouy sbenbBue| sijees) ay Bupoddng snound N 584
. sIAg81-Z} pabe sjdoad Juswdojaasqg Jsnjy — suogesiuebio
€29's = - - £29'c BunoA Joy sdoysyiom oisnw aseqpunog  [einynd 104 pun4 Aiancoay
€98 - - - €96 uoqiqiyx3 S0BUS 3y sslua(
el 61 - = - AR sanuaA souewwloyad Joj B .
Yo'l _ _ i ) Joyad Joj buipuny QINOD pund Jaligy syy soueULIGlSd
s ) - : 3«.— Sp35u0d Juswdoaaaq aIsni SUB%UON SWIYIUNT
88/°c 5 . . Mmm.m lleH paed _M oueid ;M: Jo aseyoind aseydnd Aemuisls
Z40's _ _ i 250’ swweibold Eman_msoD o1sniy SUOISSeg aseqpuNog
o ) ©62°2) gl oy jualidojanag JIsniy el Juaudoeaaq (INA
oBL'y ) \ @ v Ll swaYydg splemy juswidojaasq Jlsniy Spiemy JSINY [BNSIA sapung
SVieb - (6c0'0t) 90Z°9 ce6'r it ool o tononbon
066'PSP UOJEAIRSUOD pue suolysinboe Wnasny pun 4 uogisinboy
wwow 3 ) 3 ) 3 5 SSOIAISS |BIIND
Je2A ul Jeshul Jeak ud
UNER LE siejsuel] ainypuadx3 Ul swoou| ummNWMp“.m_mM_. asoding pund
je aoueleg

£/ 1 :obed [Pepg L 90PL90-29GE-¥o8-1.2P -1 F99€EYOP] Jpd SIUNOY [EUld 5202 A0V

202 YOJB | POPUS JBK 10j SPUN) PajOLSSY

(panunuos) sjuawsie)s [e1dueUly 3y} 0} SAON

2JpuUNng 24M3jNH R 3INSIAT



611129

1144

1
85.'9

6eC
74

€8

<0l
588
Zro'ol
XAA)
| 742
S6l'e

691
[41:3+"
goe's
000°L
101

686'995

v20e
yolep 1€
je souejeg

3
1eah ul
slajsuel]

(216'89)

(092)

¥i2)

(ozy)

SL.'%9

98¢

0eT

¥60°'95

1eal
Ul SLWooy|

962'629

[4, 0]
€229
74K
g6l'e

1€8'
218'Sl

s9e'e
000}

$66'9.5

3

€202 Iy |
je aouejeg

£/ 8 :9B8d [P9aPE | 90PL90-ZoSE-OBY-F.LP L~ L ¥O9EYOP] Jpd SN0V |BUIS 5202 ATV

soeds wiem e Buipinald

FETTS

a1 Bulnp AuUnwwod [eoo| sy} Joj soeds
Wwiem B pue syuup oy 2ay Buipnald
Jguim 3y Buunp AJunwwoo sy

Aq pasn aq 0} aoeds uuem e Bupinaid
sauesqy| 1oy Bulpuny QINOD

SaIAoR SUAIPIYD

SUOISSaS JISNW INOA

SUOISSaS DISNW YINOA

Keiqn

A4 18 Aresqi| 1003 yunwiwoo jo dn jag
PuUBO9S Y88 Yoog Bulinp sjusA
safjinpoe sualpiyd

s[nis Ayiqedojdwa sseasul

Q) dMA Yum Buppom diysieuped
}OoMaWEel] UOENIPIIDY

SISSJUN[OA SSURIqIT 2liqnd Jo} Buipun 4
oA pue 8y o} Aoriay Bujun

s)Inpy BunoA 1o} |eaRsad e Joj Buipuny
11 pue Buyjs@licys ul souapluod dojeasp
0} Buuien yeys jo Aanep Hoddng
fieiq)| lenuan u uapieb

Bulegjiepn Joopul ue jo JuawidojareQ
Suoileuop pue Buisiel pun4

uupjIyo Jo}

SAO} YOS G} Jusiuyoeye Bulojdxa palold
$)00q s, uaIp|Iyd Joj Buipuny

qn|a yesn Ynpe Joj Buipuny

asoding

LZrZr00s equinu Aueyd

pleamuc) paLued
saoedg Ason Aue4 Aybnoug

aoedg Asop Aiesqr Aquig
Buinr o 350 3pIsploD

pund jalay piaed Aleiqin diqnd
an| Burep spoY euasINyY
dnoug) yinox g Bupuapy qnH
108l01d SISN g JEUND QNH
Areiq [ooL ARuld

PuUE[109S %980 Yoog
Buipo) '3 Yerssuliy s,ualpiyd

dma
UONEJPI00Y JSSJUN|OA
Buipung 97 -sucol omL
Buy|lepuolg reubig

Areign) [enua) - usples Buieqiiop
uoisuaixy Aeiq Alie 4 Aybnolg

selppa Jnog ,unjjeL isni) sibouled
PUN JSN11 400g YSIHOOS
uapLIY GNID YIS UNPY

premuoy ybnoig

puny

{panuguod) spunj pajolsay

ayl| oyt Ayenb Bumng

Sl

(panunuos) sjuswasjeys |e1dURULY 3y} 0} SAION

9@spunq aJnjjn) B aInsia



€6/ 6v :9Bed [PaopE L90PL90-Z35E-FIRY12PL- L YI9EOP] ipd-siuncoy feuly 5202 AoVl

)X, 1Zrer00s flequinu Aweyd 9y ojul Ayenb Buming
[7AR: L - (626'012) £96'992 ££€'85.L pieauo} palue)
000'9 = - = 000'9 Buipun) snquiy yodg Ajigesiq sepung
g0l'ze = B 801'2¢ - jooloid Buraq)am pue ssaujid 10501 ueLUDEY AU AN
2LT'ES g = G [ArA > 990 G s1s02 Ausdoid snjdung pebBe] o
G188 = (158°s2) zoe'ee y8z'1s [lehood 901G JO4 S3YIL0d BUIpIADId lleqgood 19948
LOL'PL - (oov'ob) BY9'6Y £SPLL juswabebua Hunwiwo) 18210 qnH SHodg AQunuwiwoe)
= - (esz2H) 65Tl = juswdojeAsp eqiood IIleqood
¥SG'LL _ 00Z'+5) $57'59 . wawdoeraq Agbny Agbny
Yods pue ansis
fyeay enuIA
pue pajuswbny jo oiBew aip eia Buyelias
6159 . (9set) - 5L8'L ansiswwi Bursn pue ssoeds 9jjqnd Buewiuy feit Aioig
862’1 - - - 862’1 uaIp|Iyo JO} SBRIAIDE JBWIWNG un4 Jo Jswwng
susLLIEdW] [BNSIA LIM SIaWOISND Aleiqi]
g6b - - - 261 10} @nseaid Jo0} Buipes) Jo) Hoddns papuslx3 palredwy Alensi 1of Buipeay
Ajunwwos ay Aq
€1 - - - T3 osn 10} aoeds ulem B pue sagiagoe Buipiaoid Ateiqi [esjua)) je siooq uado
122 = (182'1) T80T = SqN|D SUSIPIYD Ul suswaAcdW)
L8 - (685'S) 0ov'9 - aumn4 '3 1sed SWiUBKN ssapung
Aunwwos
ISV - - - IS¥ [e0] ayj o} uolny seynd aay Bupirold  suossa Jeyng Alelqr] epispioD
Aunwwod
L = (651) oGl - [e20] 8y} 0} uowry seynb say Guipiaoid P004 pue un4 sulleg aspung
JRum ay Buunp Qunwwos
19 . (92¢) 0se 134 8y} Aq a@sn Joj soeds wiem e jo Buipiroly  soedg AsoD Aieigi |lIysaizuay
Joym ay Buunp Aunwwod
8} Jo SIaqIBL JO} SJUBLIYSALR! LM adeds
8. - - - o8/ 8|qe1o0s ‘Buiwoojom ‘ULem & JO UOISIACLd oeds Ason AleiglT] uoiss|leyd
14 = (991) ol - aceds wem e Suipiaoid ssoedg AsoD ssauyde|g
6L1'129 - (z18°89) YN 4 [ TATAY] paemo) Jubrosg
3 3 3 3 3
202 leak ul JedA u 1esi €207 [Udy | asoding pun4
Yluepw e sIajsuel] ainypuadx3 U] awooy| JE soueleg
je soueeg
(panunuod)
spuny pajouisay Sl

(penunuos) syuswajeys |eIdUBUL 3Y) 0} SAION

a9punq ainyjnj p aIns1S



£89°EHL'} - (gse'662'})
009'S1 - -

N - (evs)
18%'2¢ = (z8e'c?)
65€'69 - (evo'ol)
76€'El . =

ozy'I€ - A )]
081°02 - (0z¢g)
SIv'L = (ozL'1s2)
SeL'S - -

2£9'8S - (ocL'czL)
2961 - (gzo‘0L)
1SET - -

¥Ze'SH . (2212
- - (0sz'ss9)
66¥'sC - (0€c'9s)
&e'808 - (626'912)
3 3 3

L ZAVA Jedk ul Jesh ul
Yol L siajsuel | alnypuadxy
je oueeq

62802’}

009's1
1373
€98'6S

vzsol

0LL'98
000°‘e
912181

ocv'ezt

5200}

05Z'sSS

896°99¢
3

Jeah

Ul SWwoay|

£81'69
[4: 448

005Z1
61892

SEL'S
2£€°2S

z96't
I1SE°C
Los'Zt

629'L8

€€€'8G62
3

£202 udy |
je soueeg

66/ 05 ‘062 [PeSPE L.90PL90-Z8SB-YOBY-V.LP L~ ¥O9E9P] Jpd-siunomy |euld 20T AV

Aunwwoo (o] 343

UILRIM S3l|IWie) Jo} POO) pUE SHULIP
10y 9ay) ‘aceds uuem e Buipirold
ualpiiyo

10} SBIJIAGOR JAWWNS 10} SjUeID)
awwestosd

wswdojaasq Aqbny soueyu]
Ppalaid UCISNDU) S|IOOYOS SARIY
§{ooy2s

aniy Ag und 10afo.d seniaoe ayig
aiua) JoopINg Wrusuy ybnoiuyy
suoissas Bupjemily spinosd ) Jues
Bulppho

ybnoiy safysay Ayyesy sjowoud
0} uswdinbs jo aseyaind Jof juel
swwelboid Asa|ap

[9AB] 9AlJO€ [00YDS JO UISIAOLd
$Japunj snouea — SHN Yim
diysusuped ul swwelfoid Bupjiep
Buipuny sajiAnoe JoopIng

Buipury sannoe Joopno

S|00Y2s

uim seaoe buplods 1o) Bulpung
Buiyeys Dy J0) Buipund

esoding

1ZPZP0OS fequinu Aueyd

PIEAIO} PIILED

siajen Bunop

08 seibnogQ

spolold Sjooyos SANDY
g sejbno( e siooq uedg
Jowiung o) 199

IO Qi) Agbny

uoISNU| S|00YIS BAIY
anpy Aued

spaloid S|o0yoS SITY

puejoog Buipid

|@AelY 9AROY
YyesH o) sdajg
siabueideld
saMTHEd

S10040g SAROY
Buipund aJjuen soueLlolad [eucibey

piemuoj bnoig

pung

(panuguoa) spuny pajouIsay

ay| oy Ayenb Bumnd

Sl

{panunuos) sjuswaje)s |edueUl} 3y} 0} SSION

28pun@ 4NNy R 2INsIS



060'vLE"L

10v'092

£89'cLL'L

3
20T
wJew 1€
Je soueieg

3
Jeak ul

siejsuel|

(262'8%9'1)

(60r'6¥¢)

(gec'662'1)

3
ledA ul

aumypuadx3

189°928'L

758's0S

628'0CEl

3
Jeak

uj aWogu|

14

902'961 'L

¥96'c01

(A4

3
€202 udy |
je souejeqg

£6/ 1S :aBed [P29PE1LO0PGO-ZOSE-4O81-FLP L-LH99EVOP] Jpd SIUNCOY EUL S20C AV

|ZyTr00S Iequinu Aeyd 9yl oyl Ayenb Buming

aapun( Joj ubisaq
40 A3 09S3NN ' syosloud fesmynd diysisuyed aoejd
sao1auas Joddng
pJenuoy ybnoig
asoding pun4

{penunuoo) spunj pajorsay Gl

(panunuo) sjuswaeys jedueUly aYy; 0} SAION

aapung aJnyjn) R NSO



Leisure & Culture Dundee

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

16 Reconciliation of net movement in funds to net cash inflow/{outflow)

2025 2024
£ £
Net income/expenditure (286,100) (82,191)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & impairment 18,088 18,088
Interest received (72,656) (55,291)
Increase in stock (10,387) (860)
Decrease in debtors 2,245,146 1,283,293
increase/(Decrease) in creditors 26,841 (2,538,541)
FRS102 Pension Adjustment 326,641 241,988
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 2,247,573 (_1_133_51?
putting quality into life ~ Charity number SC042421 50
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